
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

October 27, 2022 

 

 

 
  



October 25, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – WORK SESSION 
TUESDAY, October 25, 2022   

6:00 PM - WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams                       Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 
Keith Sattler        Kristi Mellema, CQO 
Brandon Bowden                                                                                        Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
Neilan McPartland                                  Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO 
                                                                                                                                   Annie Parker, CCOO 
  
        
                                 GUESTS:     Adam Trumbour, Senior Project Manager, NV5 
                                                                                                           Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 
                                                                                                           Brandon Potts, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Nick Gonzalez, Bouten Construction 
                                                                                                           Kurt Broeckelmann, bcDG 
                                                                                                            

                   
  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
                II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 III.   SERVICES 
        A.  Replacement Facility Update                         
            1. Design Updates                                                                                                      
                   a. DOH/USDA/City of Prosser Reviews                                                                        bcDG/NV5 
                   b. SVID (Attachment D)                                                                                                     NV5 
      c. Washington DOT                                                                                                           bcDG 
                   d. Furniture Fair                                                                                                                  NV5 
                      
            2. Construction/Schedule/Budget                                                                                                                  
                   a. Contractor update                                                                                                       Bouten/NV5 
                   b. Schedule (Attachment C)                                                                                      NV5/Bouten/bcDG    
                   c. Project Budget                                                                                                                  NV5                                   
            
 
       

 



October 25, 2022 Board of Commissioners Work Session Agenda 

  
 
           3. Financing                                                                                                                                               Gary 
 a. USDA (Attachment F)  
                b.  Board Resolution #1073 (Attachment G)                                                                                  Gary 
                c. Construction Loan 

 
 
 
B. Review Mission, Vision, Values & Standards of Behavior (Attachment H)                                           Craig 
 
 
C. 2023 Strategic Planning (Attachment I)                                                                                                        
 
     1. Patient Loyalty                                                                                                                                             Merry 
     2. Medical Staff Development                                                                                                           Dr. Sollers/Annie 
     3. Employee Development                                                                                                                            Bryon 
     4. Quality                                                                                                                                                           Kristi 
     5. Services                                                                                                                                                         Shannon 
     6. Financial Stewardship                                                                                                                                 David 
 
 
        
  IV.  ADJOURN  



October 27, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
THURSDAY, October 27, 2022     

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
  AGENDA 

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                                                                                                 Dr. Brian Sollers, CMO      
                                                                              Annie Parker, CCOO 
                    
   I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
   
 
  II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
 
 IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for September 29, 2022. 
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #167840 through #168540 dated 09-22-22 through 10-19-22 in the amount of 

$6,270,447.64. Surplus Items Resolution #1072 (2) washers; (2) dryers; (2) Stryker Stretchers; and (1) Cast Cutter 
with Vacuum. 

             Action Requested – Consent Agenda 
 

                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Carl 
             1. Advancement from Provisional           

Elizabeth Karr, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in Emergency Medicine effective November 1, 2022, through 
April 30, 2024. 

 
Juliet Dennis, MHNP – Advance Practice Clinician privileges in Mental Health effective November 1, 2022, 
through April 30, 2024. 
Action Requested - Advancement from Provisional 

 
 



October 27, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
 

          2. New Appointment 
Rachel Monick, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine effective 
November 1, 2022, through April 30, 2023. 

 
Colton Rishor-Olney, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective November 1, 2022, through April 30, 2023. 

               Action Requested – New Appointment and Requested Clinic Privileges 
 
         3.  Reappointment 

 Ketan Kale, MD – Reappointment to the Courtesy staff with requested privileges in Internal Medicine effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Tad White, MD – Reappointment to Courtesy staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Fadi Akoum, MD – Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Nephrology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Katherine Cayetano, MD – Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Pulmonology 
effective November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Naveen Rawat, MD – Reappointment to Consulting staff with requested privileges in Pulmonology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Thomas Ballard, MD – Reappointment to Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology 
effective November 1, 2022, through October 31,2024.  

 
Randi Lindstrom, DO – Reappointment to Locum Tenens staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Minal Bhanushali, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
James Jordan, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Ravi S. Menon, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Ravi Pande, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Neurology effective 
November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Monjari Gillian, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology 
effective November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

 
Jake Vrdoljak, MD – Reappointment to Telemedicine staff with requested privileges in Diagnostic Radiology 
effective November 1, 2022, through October 31, 2024. 

               Action Requested – Reappointment and Requested Clinical Privileges 
            
 
 



October 27, 2022, Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

 
VI. FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for September 2022 & Investment Performance                                        David 
               (Attachment Q) (Attachment U)                                                              
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 

  B.  Board Resolution # 1073-Replacement Facility Financing (Attachment G)                                     Craig/David 
               Action Requested- Board Resolution # 1073 at a cost not to exceed $80,500,000. 
 
         C.  Irrigation Canal Pipe-$75,000 (1240’) 
                Action Requested-Purchase 1240’ of irrigation canal pipe at a cost not to exceed $75,000.            Craig 
 
         D.  Modular Home Replacement (Attachment V)                                                                                              David 
               Action Requested- Modular Home Replacement at a cost not to exceed $79,654. 
 
 
 
VII.  QUALITY 
 
         A.  Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) (Attachment W)                                                              Kristi 
               Action Requested-CHNA 
 
         B.    Legislative and Political Updates                                                                                            Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
         C.  CEO/Operations Report                                                                                                                                        Craig 
 
  
  VIII.  ADJOURN 
 
  
 
 
  
   
 
  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2022 Strategic Plan 
and 2022 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2022 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 

• Review Board Committee structure 
and membership 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of surgical 
equipment 

• Approve radiologist contracts 

• Approve Construction Loan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2021 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Construction Loan Schedule Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve construction mini-MACC 

• Approve construction documents 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference  
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary report 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 
 
SERVICES: 

Replacement Facility Update:  

• Construction Documents 

• Mini-MACC 

• Schedule 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2022 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2022 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Review and Approve 2022 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 

 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2021 Audit Report 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 

 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review 2021 Utilization Review 
Performance 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2021 Infection Prevention 
Summary 
 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2021 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

• Capital Campaign Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
PATIENT LOYALTY 

• Approve the 2022 Utilization Review 
Plan 

 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2022 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 

SERVICES: 

• Approve the MACC / GMP for the 
new facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SERVICES: Replacement Facility Update 

• MCAA / GMP 

• USDA Update 

• Budget 
QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 

• Review the Communications 
Calendar 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2021 FPPE/OPPE Summary 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Interpreter Services Plan 

• Call Center Update 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Employee Retirement Update 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Customer Service Program 
 
 

June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2021 CAH Annual Report 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Cost Report 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2022 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leader Assessment and 
Development Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accounting Software Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Single Audit 
 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 
 
 

QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
 

 
 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Board Judiciary Responsibilities 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Foundation Update 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

 

SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility update 
 
PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Nurse Educator Update 

October  QUALITY: 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
• Conduct 2023 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Accountability 
Resource Tools 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Patient Loyalty Summary 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Property Tax 
Request for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2023 Strategic Plan; 
2023 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Non-exempt (union) 
performance evaluation template 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2023 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2023 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2023 Strategic Plan; 2023 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2023 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2023 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

• Banking relationship Selection 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

 



                       2022 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 2020

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 2.02% 1.47% 0.88% 2.25% 2.97% 3.88% 2.89% 5.09% 4.40% 3.00% 1.47% 0.80%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 53             56             51             51             45             51             53             63             53                53             60 70

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 109           115           114           114           110           134           128           128           143              122           117 128

Severe Preeclamptic Mothers:  Timely Treatment Rate >90.00% 42.86% 57.14% 86.21% 60.00% 84.62% 90.91% 88.89% 100.00% 66.67% 70.59% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.70% 10.61% 2.74% 4.92% 3.77% 5.45% 9.09% 5.63% 6.45% 8.06% 6.22% 5.80% 3.80%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >94.40% 100.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 96.43% 94.40% 72.73%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.57% 0.00% 0.00% 0.45% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.11% 0% 0.29%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <21.89% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 23.16% 21.89% 27.61%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90.00% 96.30% 94.74% 90.74% 92.00% 88.00% 85.00% 76.67% 81.67% 77.59% 86.76% 46% 47.15%

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 22.0         21.0         21.0         21.0         19.0         19.0         18.0         19.0         19.0            19.9         38 37.5

Median Time to ECG for Patients Presenting to the ED with Chest Pain < 6.3 min 5.0            3.0            5.0            5.0            4.0            4.0            5.0            3.0            4.0               4.2            6.3 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.19% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.04% 0.19% 0.25%

Bar Code Scanning:  Medication Compliance >93.50% 94.91% 95.77% 95.43% 95.00% 94.54% 93.76% 91.55% 93.34% 92.50%    94.09% 93.50% 98.90%

Bar Code Scanning:  Patient Compliance >94.70% 96.42% 95.81% 96.17% 96.16% 95.95% 94.83% 92.35% 93.55% 92.87%    94.90% 94.70% N/A

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >61 61             61             36             36             36             36             36             36             36                36             61 53

*Falls with Injury <2 -           -           -           -           -           1               -           -           -              1               3 2

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



                               2022 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2022 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2022 YTD 2021 Avg 2020 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >93.1% 94.8% 92.4% 91.7% 92.9% 90.5% 96.4% 79.2% 90.8% 90.3% 91.2% 93.1% 87.9%

ED - "Would Recommend" >84.0% 83.9% 81.7% 76.4% 88.0% 88.8% 90.7% 67.7% 85.2% 91.3% 85.5% 84.0% 81.4%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >91.8% 90.9% 94.4% 87.5% 94.4% 87.5% 91.7% 79.2% 85.0% 97.2% 89.5% 91.8% 84.1%

OB - "Would Recommend" >93.6% 99.0% 100.0% 97.7% 100.0% 88.9% 100.0% 75.0% 100.0% 100.0% 94.7% 93.6% 92.3%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >96.6% 100.0% 100.0% 97.2% 97.7% 94.4% 95.3% 98.5% 91.4% 95.2% 95.6% 96.6% 89.8%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 92.8% 97.5% 91.7% 97.6% 91.8% 94.3% 86.8% 90.6% 92.5% 91.0% 91.0% 87.3%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >94.1% 98.1% 96.1% 93.5% 96.0% 96.0% 94.8% 94.5% 90.6% 92.1% 94.6% 94.1% 88.1%

Composite Score >92.9% 95.7% 95.2% 94.4% 94.1% 93.8% 93.7% 93.2% 94.0% 92.7% 92.7% 92.9% N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4% 0% 1% 0% 5% 12% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,352         1,386          1,429        1,617        1,428        1,366        1,422        1,272        1,681        1,365        1,441        1,318        954           

Benton City Clinic Visits 868            775             650           822           657           870           730           718           899           881           778           732           837           

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,291         1,063          1,111        1,206        1,106        1,211        1,122        1,152        1,398        1,138        1,167        1,227        1,226        

Grandview Clinic Visits 969            1,055          833           1,021        873           986           960           904           1,065        1,107        978           778           589           

Women's Health Center  679            508             600           660           533           611           708           554           648           569           599           602           601           

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 52 53 53 54 55 54 55 54 54 54 51             45             

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 99% 99% 98% 98% 46%

Average Recruitment Time (days) <21 19 26 40 11 15 19 22 17.5 18 21             21             32             

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 32 28 35 31 32 39 39 29 27 32             32             29             

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 6.8% 5.3% 4.9% 6.0% 6.3% 6.1% 8.2% 7.1% 7.1% 6.4% 6.1% 5.9%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <7.7% 6.2% 10.6% 6.9% 6.9% 5.7% 7.9% 7.7% 10.5% 8.9% 7.9% 7.7% 7.6%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.6% 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 1.2% 0.6% 0.0% 0.6% 0.8% 0.9% 0.6%

Timely Evaluations >71.8% 95.1% 85.0% 84.2% 93.0% 79.0% 80.0% 81.0% 78.0% 91.0% 85.1% 71.8% 70.2%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 0.64            1.33          1.39          0.95          0.68          0.75          0.44          1.05          1.68          0.99          1.05          1.22          

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0.6% 0.6% 0% 0.6% 0.3% 0.3% 1.4% 0.3% 1.1% 0.6% 10% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 11 7 7 0 0 6.3 13 15 8 7               19.49       10.25       

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 2.0% 1.5% 0.9% 2.3% 3.0% 3.9% 2.9% 5.1% 4.4% 2.9% 1.4% 0.8%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3               2               

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.1% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.0% 0.3%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 10.6% 2.7% 4.9% 3.7% 5.5% 9.1% 5.6% 6.5% 8.1% 6.3% 6.1% 3.8%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <21.88% 22.40% 24.19% 24.53% 21.32% 22.32% 23.35% 26.83% 22.76% 20.98% 23.19% 21.88% 27.61%

Services

ED Visits 1,083         1,287          949           1,138        1,246        1,448        1,419        1,384        1,375        1,501        1,305        1,105        805           

Inpatient Admissions 96               123             98             115           102           89             120           121           123           96             110           116           83             

OB Deliveries 50               47               41             61             46             41             50             57             55             42             49             49             41             

Surgeries and Endoscopies 187            162             170           268           274           288           337           284           331           301           268           179           101           

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,851         2,462          2,619        3,134        2,915        2,981        3,091        2,691        3,125        3,317        2,926        2,992        2,280        

Lab Procedures 14,000       14,139       13,806     14,818     13,359     15,075     14,738     13,972     16,271     14,778     14,551     14,327     11,768     

Adjusted Patient Days 1,900         1,627          1,819        2,016        1,838        2,127        2,461        2,502        2,545        2,500        2,159        1,697        1,393        

Therapy Visits 1,651         1,225          1,391        1,542        1,339        1,420        1,701        1,540        1,817        1,448        1,491        1,453        1,314        

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 325            241             221           332           249           277           306           364           389           418           311           324           247           

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 50               55               58             55             56             55             55             55             55             55             55             51             63             

*Total Margin 6.90% 5.2% 13.6% 13.3% 11.2% 5.2% 16.8% 7.4% 23.6% 8.4% 12.1% 18.40% 4.50%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,431$    17,959$     18,695$   21,800$   19,651$   20,465$   21,737$   18,317$   23,184$   22,020$   20,425$   20,682$   17,191$   

Labor as % of net Revenue 56.30% 63.18% 52.36% 48.39% 62.85% 60.40% 50.97% 59.42% 45.01% 56.04% 55.40% 57.00% 61.30%

Operating Expense/FTE 18,177$    17,959$     16,155$   17,591$   17,598$   19,469$   17,756$   17,086$   17,873$   19,609$   17,900$   16,940$   15,891$   

*Days Cash on Hand 109            142             150           154           150           148           152           154           161           163           161           155           183           

Commercial % 28.60% 29.90% 30.90% 31.80% 31.70% 31.40% 31.60% 31.60% 31.30% 31.70% 31.70% 29.00% 29.00%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 60.20% 60.73% 60.33% 59.41% 62.99% 62.87% 60.43% 62.50% 58.03% 62.86% 61.13% 61.00% 61.30%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



 

BOARD WORK SESSION                                                                    September 27, 2022                                              WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
 

STAFF PRESENT GUESTS   COMMUNITY        
MEMBERS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny                        

• Keith Sattler  

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers 

• Paul Kramer, NV5 

• Gary Hicks, Financial Advisor 

• Brandon Potts, Vice President- 
Bouten Construction 
 

None. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 I.   CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.    Public Comment  None. None. 

III.  SERVICES DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

        A.  Replacement Facility  
              Update 

 
 

   

    1. Design Updates 
         a. CN (Attachment D) 
         b. SVID 
         c. DOH/USDA/City of   

Prosser Reviews 
         d. Furniture Fair 

Paul Kramer and Craig provided the Board 
with updates regarding the Certificate of 
Need (CN) granted by the Washington 
State Department of Health; ongoing work 
with SVID to bury the existing overflow 
canal on hospital property; regulatory 
agency (DOH, USDA, City of Prosser) 
reviews; and the scheduling of a furniture 
fair at PMH in November. 
 
 

None. None. 



                2.  Construction/ 
                      Schedule/Budget 

a. Value Engineering 
Update 
(Attachment E) 

b. Bouten MACC 
(Attachment F) 
(Attachment G) 

c. GC/CM Contract 
A133 
(Attachment H)   
 

Brandon provided a Value Engineering 
update to the Board. He also presented 
the proposed Bouten MACC at a cost not 
to exceed $74,817,419 and the GC/CM 
contract- #A133. 
 
 
 

None.  The Board will be 
asked to approve 
The Bouten MACC 
at a cost not to 
exceed 
$74,817,419 and 
the GC/CM 
contract with 
Bouten 
Construction 
A133, at the 
September Board 
Meeting. 

d. Schedule 
(Attachment I) 

e. Project Budget 
(Attachment J) 
(Attachment K) 

Paul reviewed a draft schedule and 
provided a budget for the project at a 
total cost not to exceed $112,048,033. 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the Project 
Budget at a total 
cost not to exceed 
$112,048,033. 
at the September 
Board Meeting. 

                3.  Financing      
a. USDA  

(Attachment L) 
(Attachment M) 

b. Construction Loan 
c. Equipment Lease 

 
 

Gary provided an update on all financing 
activities, including the USDA, 
construction loan and an equipment lease. 
Gary reviewed Board Resolution #1071-
Project Financing. 

None.       The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the Board 
Resolution #1071-
Project Financing. 
at the September 
Board Meeting. 

        B.  Capital Equipment 
Requests 

            1. Radiology Equipment for 
the Replacement 
Facility  

                 (Attachment N) 
                 (Attachment O) 

Merry Fuller and Craig Marks reviewed the 
capital equipment acquisition request-
Radiology Equipment for the Replacement 
Facility- GE MRI and CT at a cost not to 
exceed $2,028,830. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

None. The Board will be 
asked to approve 
the capital 
equipment 
acquisition 
request- GE MRI 
and CT at a cost 
not to exceed 
$2,028,830 at the 
September Board 
Meeting. 



There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the regular business meeting at 7:28 p.m.  The Board 
entered into Executive Session at 7:29 p.m. which was expected to last approximately 1 hour, with no action to be taken after the session. 

IV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A.  RCW 42.30.110 (I) To consider proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the development, acquisition or 
implementation of state purchased health care services as provided in RCW 41.05.26 

B.  RCW 42.30.110 (g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee.  Executive Session ended at 7:52 p.m. 

V. RESUME SESSION 

Open session resumed at 7:52 p.m. 

VI. ADJOURN 

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 

 



 

 

 

        BOARD MEETING                                                                                  September 29, 2022,                                                WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT                         MEDICAL STAFF                                              GUESTS 

• Steve Kenny Ph.D. 

• Glenn Bestebreur  

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland  

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 

• Dr. Brian Sollers 

• Dr. Jared Clifford 

• Bill Bouten 

              AGENDA                                                                                                                                                              DISCUSSION                                    ACTION      FOLLOW-UP 

   I.    Call to Order  The meeting was called to order by Commissioner 
Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

    

      A. Pledge of Allegiance        

 II.  Public Comment None.  None. None. 

III.  Approve Agenda 
 

None. Commissioner Bestebreur made a Motion to 
approve the August 25, 2022, Agenda.  The 
Motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Reams and passed with 6 in favor, 0 
opposed.                 

None. 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT 
       AGENDA  
      A. Board of Commissioners     
           Meeting Minutes for 
           August 25, 2022. 
       
 
 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a Motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Bestebreur          
and passed with 6 in favor, 0 opposed.  

None. 



 

 

      B. Payroll & AP Vouchers  
       #167133 through 
      #167839 dated 08.18.22 

        through 09.21.22 in the     
amount of $7,808,752.65. 

 

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT                                 DISCUSSION                                                                     ACTION                                       FOLLOW-UP 

     A.    Medical Staff Report     
and Credentialing 

 
 
 

  None. 

1. Advancement from 
Provisional 

Dr. Jared Clifford presented the following providers 
for Advancement from Provisional: 
 
 Peter Himmel, MD – Locum Tenens privileges in 
Emergency Medicine effective October 1, 2022, 
through March 31, 2024. 
 
William Lou, MD – Telemedicine Staff privileges in 
Neurology effective October 1, 2022, through 
March 31, 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the Advancement from 
Provisional Appointment and requested 
Clinical Privileges that were reviewed and 
recommended by the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and Medical 
Executive Committee for the following 
providers was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich.  The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

• Peter Himmel, MD 

• William Lou, MD 

None. 

                      2.  New Appointments           
 

Dr. Jared Clifford presented the following New 
Appointments:   
 
Monroe Whitman lll, MD – Provisional/Locum 
Tenens Staff with requested privileges in General 
Surgery effective October 1, 2022, through March 
31, 2023. 
 
 

A Motion to approve the New Appointments 
and requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Bestebreur and 
seconded by Commissioner Sattler.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

• Monroe Whitman lll, MD 

None. 



 

 

James Wallace, MD – Provisional/Locum Tenens 
Staff with requested privileges in Emergency 
Medicine effective October 1, 2022, through March 
28, 2023. 
 

 Soo Young Kwon, MD – Provisional/Telemedicine 
staff with requested privileges in Neurology 
effective October 1, 2022, through March 31, 2023  
 
 

 
 

. 
 

• James Wallace, MD 

• Soo Young Kwon, MD 

              3. Reappointment Dr.  Jared Clifford presented the following providers 
for Reappointment:   
 
Stephen Burton, MD – Reappointment to the 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective October 1, 2022, through 
September 31, 2024. 
 
Aixa Espinosa-Morales, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective October 1, 2022, through 
September 31, 2024. 
 
George Lopez, MD – Reappointment to 
Telemedicine Staff with requested privileges in 
Neurology effective October 1, 2022, through 
September 31, 2024. 
 
 
            
 
 
 
 

A Motion to approve the reappointment and 
requested Clinical Privileges that were 
reviewed and recommended by the 
Department Chair, the Credentialing 
Committee and Medical Executive 
Committee for the following provider was 
made by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

• Stephen Burton, MD 

• Aixa Espinosa-Morales, MD 

• George Lopez, MD 

 



 

 

VI. SERVICES 

     A. Bouten MACC 
           (Maximum Allowable 

Construction Cost) 
(Attachment F) 

           (Attachment G)  
 

Craig Presented a Bouten MACC at a cost not to 
exceed $74,817,419. 

A Motion to approve the Bouten MACC at a 
cost not to exceed $74,817,419 was made 
by Commissioner Bestebreur and seconded 
by Commissioner McPartland. The Motion 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

  B. GC/CM Contract- 
       Bouten Construction 
       (Attachment H) 
        

Craig Presented the PMH AIA General Contractor 
Construction Management (GC/CM) Contract A133 
with Bouten Construction. 

A Motion to approve the GC/CM Contract 
A133 with Bouten Construction was made 
by Commissioner Reams and seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur. The Motion 
passed with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

None. 

C. Contract Signing- 
     MACC and GC/CM Contract 

Craig presented Bill Bouten (President of Bouten 
Construction) to the Board. The MACC and GC/CM 
contract with Bouten Construction were signed by 
PMH CEO-Craig Marks and Bouten Construction 
President-Bill Bouten. 
 

None. None. 

D.  Radiology Equipment-GE 
MRI and CT 

          (Attachment N) 
          (Attachment O)     

Merry presented a Capital Request for a General 
Electric MRI and CT at a total cost not to exceed 
$2,028,830. 

A Motion to approve the Capital Request for 
a GE MRI and CT at a cost not to exceed 
$2,028,830 was made by Commissioner 
Reams and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

None. 

VII.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP                        DISCUSSION                                                                              ACTION                                                       FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Review Financial  
            Reports for August 
            2022 (Attachment V) 

 

David Rollins presented the August 2022 Financial 
Reports.   
 

A Motion to accept the Financial Reports for 
August 2022, was made by Commissioner 
Dietrich, and seconded by Commissioner 
Reams. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 0 
opposed. 
 

None. 

    B.  Replacement Facility   
Project Budget 
(Attachment J) 
(Attachment K) 

Craig presented a Replacement Facility Total 
Project cost not to exceed $112,048,033. 

A Motion to approve the Replacement 
Facility Total Project cost not to exceed 
$112,048,033 was made by Commissioner 
Bestebreur and seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich. The Motion passed with 7 in favor, 
0 opposed. 

None. 



 

 

 

  C. Board Resolution #1071 
(Attachment M) 

David presented Board Resolution #1071-Project 
Financing.                    

A Motion to approve the Board Resolution 
#1071-Project Financing was made by 
Commissioner Bestebreur and seconded by 
Commissioner Bowden. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed 

None. 

VIII. EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

A.  Employee 
Inflation/Retention 
Incentive- 3.0% (excluding 
Leadership and Providers) 
(Attachment GG) 

Craig presented an Employee Inflation Retention 
Incentive at a total cost not to exceed $556,182 
(3.0%).                

A Motion to approve the Employee Inflation 
Retention Incentive at a total cost not to 
exceed $556,182 (3.0%) was made by 
Commissioner Bestebreur and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams. The Motion passed 
with 7 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 

IX.  QUALITY                                                                        DISCUSSION                                                                        ACTION                                         FOLLOW-UP 

A. Legislative and Political   
Updates 

Glenn Bestebreur gave a brief Legislative and 
Political Update. 
 
 
 

None. None. 

B.  CEO/Operations Report Craig provided a brief Operations Report based 
upon his written report included in the September 
Board Packet. He also passed out the Strategic 
Planning Binders for 2023. 

 

None. 
 
 

None. 

X.  ADJOURN  

There being no further business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                   OCTOBER 19, 2022                                               VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• Commissioner Dr. S. Dietrich 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. D. Carl 

• Dr. B. Sollers 

• Dr. D. Weaver 

• K. Mellema, CQO, CCO 

• M. Fuller, CNO/COO 

• Dr. S. Hashmi 
 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 0707 am 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES September 2022 minutes were reviewed and approved by the 
Committee.  

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

Strategic & Patient Care 
Scorecards 

K. Mellema shared some September highlights from the Patient 
Care Scorecard: 

• All Cause Un-Planned 30-Day Readmissions – 8.06% 

• Sepsis (Early Management Bundle) – 100% 

• Healthcare Associated Infections – 0% 

• Diabetes Management (A1c >9) – 21% 

• STAT lab times – 19 minutes 

• ECG for Chest Pain patients – 4 minutes 

• Medication Barcode Scanning – 92.5% 

• Patient Barcode Scanning – 92.87% 
Strategic Plan Scorecard September highlights: 

• Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits – 1,365 

• Women’s Health Center Visits – 569 

• 403(b) Participation Rate – 99% 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



• Turnover Rate – 0.6% 

• Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injury – 16 days 

• ED Visits 1,501 

• OB Deliveries - 42 

Community Health Needs 
Assessment (CHNA) 

K. Mellema reported on the new 2022 Community Health Needs 
Assessment (CHNA).  This is a CMS requirement for healthcare 
organizations that are not-for-profit.  The 2022 CHNA was a 
collaboration between the Benton-Franklin Health District, Benton-
Franklin Community Health Alliance, Prosser Memorial Health, and 
Kadlec Regional Medical Center.  The purpose of a CHNA is to help 
determine which critical health needs the community will focus on 
over the next three to five years.  Quantitative and qualitative data 
was used to determine the significant health needs which were 
identified as being: 

• Behavioral Health 

• Housing and Homelessness 

• Access to Health 

• Community Partnership Development 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

Patient Satisfaction Data M. Fuller reported on the Patient Loyalty Summary Report: “Would 
Recommend”.  The Emergency Department was at 91.32% for 
September with a YTD of 85.52% which is over goal.  Many of the 
survey comments for the Clinics continue to be around access.  To 
help with this, the expanded Call Center will start November 1st, so 
when patients call the Clinic, they will get a live person.  To 
compliment that, we will have a RN triage nurse.  The clinic team is 
also working with a Studer customer service expert team that has 
come in and will be providing training and support for the staff.  
Acute Care is down a little bit based on increased volumes and the 
rotation of patients being moved to other rooms especially in the 
middle of the night which is a big patient dissatisfier.  Terra and 
Maryanne have been working with the House Supervisors and 
charge nurse to be proactive and anticipate needs ahead of time to 
avoid moving patients as much as possible.  Staffing has stabilized 
our increase in volumes.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

iPad Donations M. Fuller reported that there was a high-school student that started 
a Go-Fund me account to buy ten iPads with stands in response to 
patient isolation during the Covid pandemic.  The intention is for 
hospitalized patients to be able to have the opportunity to virtually 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No necessary 
follow up. 



visit with their friends and families when visitors are not allowed.    
These ten iPads were donated to ten hospitals in Washington and 
PMH was a lucky recipient of one of the iPads on October 7th where 
there was a small gathering of staff for the presentation by the 
student and her family. 

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility 
Update 

C. Marks reported that we continue to have meetings with the 
Department of Health (DOH).  The call yesterday (10/18/22) was a 
clinical function meeting which gave us an understanding of what 
the DOH wants for us to complete in the Functional Plan in order 
for them to approve.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 
 
 

2023 Strategic Planning C. Marks reported that we have had 10 Strategic planning sessions 
with employees and will do the same with the Board next week.  
There will be worksheets in the Board packet that can be used to 
jot down ideas.  A draft Strategic Plan will be presented to the 
Board in November and a final copy in December. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

Dr. Hashmi reported that we are in negotiations with an orthopedic 
candidate who has extensive experience and is sports medicine 
trained.   
 
We recently had an interview with an internist from Tri-Cities but 
there is another internal medicine candidate coming November 1st 
who worked at Kadlec and moved to Indiana.   
 
There is a good candidate for radiology that is currently doing her 
fellowship at UW but will not complete until June. We have another 
radiologist (Dr. Russell) coming this week for a visit and had a third 
radiology candidate that contacted us from Joplin, Missouri.   
 
Dr. Sollers reported that a PA with dermatology training has signed 
a contract and will be working with Dr. Nylander.  The ED now has a 
second ARNP that is full time this month.  Dr. McDonnel (GI) will be 
starting with us in January.  Finally, we have several psych ARNP 
candidates that we will start calling November 1st.  

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

Employee Engagement 
Activities 

C. Marks reported that our next celebration is Halloween.  We have 
pumpkins outside for the staff for the decorating contest.  Also, the 
chili cook-off will happen on Halloween.  Finally, the Holiday party is 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 



scheduled for December 10th, and it will be a casino night at the 
HAPO center in Pasco. 

 

Health Insurance Rates 
from 2023 

C. Marks reported that health insurance costs are going up across 
the country, but we will not be increasing our rates.  There maybe a 
slight increase for vision but that will be the only thing.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance – 
September 2022 

C. Marks reported that we exceeded budget at $742,013.  
Investment income took a hit despite having conservative 
investments.  YTD we are at $8.5 million compared to last year 
which was $12.8 million which was due to Covid.  If the Covid 
money is taken out of last year, we are far exceeding this year.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Modular Home 
Replacement 
 

C. Marks reported that we will be replacing the modular home that 
burned down but a garage must be built on the property as well.  
We should get approximately $300,000-$400,000 once it is sold.  
This proposal will go before the Board this month for approval. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0838 

Next scheduled meeting November 9, 2022 

 

K. Mellema 10/20/2022 



October 24, 2022 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday – October 24, 2022,  

7:00 a.m. – Vineyard Conference Room 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – September 26, 2022, Minutes 

 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
              A.  Review Financials – September 2022 (Attachment Q)                                                                      David 
                    Action Requested – September 2022 Financial Statements 
          
              B.  Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                                               David 
 
   
             C.  Voucher Lists                                                                                                                                                 
                   Action Requested – Voucher List - Payroll and AP Vouchers # 167840 through #168540                           David 
                   Dated 09-22-22 through 10-19-22 in the amount of $6,270,447.64. 
                   Surplus Item Resolution # 1072: (2) Commercial Washer Extractor (2) Commercial Dryer  
                   Extractors; (2) Stryker Stretchers; and (1) Cast Cutter with Vacuum. 
 
             D. Modular Home Replacement (Attachment V) 
                  Action Requested-Modular Home Replacement driveway and garage at a cost not to exceed $79,654.  David 
 
      
        III.  ADJOURN  

  

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  September 26, 2022                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

                    
GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden  
 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance Operations 
 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to order at 7:09 a.m.  
 
 

 

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  
 

A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
Minutes for August 22, 2022, 
as presented was made by 
Neilan McPartland.  The 
motion was seconded by 
Keith Sattler and approved.   
 

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
A. Review Financials –  

August 2022 
             (Attachment V) 

David reported Net Income of $2,146,095 in August 
and Gross Charges were $23,458,145 which was 27% 
higher than budget for the month and 24% greater 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the August 
2022 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 

None. 



 

 

              than the prior year.  Net Operating Revenue came in 
at $9,104,983 (22% over budget).   
 
Expenses were $7,019,245 in August and 1% over 
budget.  Surgeries were 331 vs 191 budget and ER 
visits were 1,375 vs 1,104 budget. 
 
Cash Flow was $1,536,782 for the month and 
$2,233,317 YTD.  AR stayed at a net 55 days overall. 
 
Continued to discuss and show progress in Revenue 
Cycle to reduce Days in AR > 90. 
 

of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

AR stayed at 55 net days overall as Collections were a 
record $7,997,934 but goal still was aggressive at 
$9,419,613.  POS collections were $35,308 exceeding a 
budget of $15,000 and prior year $4,720.  POS 
collections YTD are $314,586 versus $120,000 budget 
and $132,394 prior year. 
 

None. None. 

     C.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #167133 through #167839 
           Dated 08-18-22 through   
           09-21-22 in the amount of  

 $7,808,752.65. Surplus Item 
Resolution # 1070: (4) Sleeper 
Sofas.       

 A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the August 
2022 Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Neilan McPartland. The 
motion was seconded by 
Brandon Bowden and 
approved. 

None. 

IV.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:48 am. 

 



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

  PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH 

FROM:   CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO 

DATE:   October 2022 

RE:  CEO REPORT 

______________________________________________________________________________  

SERVICES 

1.  Replacement Facility Update 

          Our replacement facility project was a significant area of focus in our 2022 Strategic Plan, and 

even though we have accomplished a lot, it will remain an area of focus in our 2023 Strategic Plan as 

we prepare to break ground. Our most recent project activities and plans are included in the October 

Owner’s Representative (NV5) Project Report (Attachment A); the minutes from our last project 

team meeting (Attachment B); and the project schedule for the next four months (Attachment C). To 

assist in compartmentalizing the project, I will continue to use the following areas: Design; 

Construction/ Schedule/ Budget; and Financing. 

 

 A. Design 

          The major focus of our design activity is meeting with the Washington Department of Health 

(DOH) to review our project drawings, operational plans, etc. We have been delayed in this process 

for several months as the result of staff turnover at the DOH. We have emphasized our desire, and 

need, to move quickly in an effort to keep our costs down as interest rates continue to rise. The DOH 

appears to be understanding of our concerns and has scheduled several meetings with us this week. 

Our ultimate goal is to receive and A2BC (Authorization to Begin Construction) from the DOH by mid-

November. They have verbally indicated this is possible. They have also indicated that they will give 

us a foundation only permit by the end of this week. This would allow us to begin the construction 

sooner, however, the USDA may not allow this. We have asked them, but they have not responded to 

our question. We believe they will require us to have the A2BC from the DOH before they will give us 

a notice to proceed with the construction. Many members of the project team are involved in the 

DOH review process including clinical leaders from PMH. Currently the review is going well, and we 

hope to have an update for the Board at the October Board Work Session. Our Owner’s 

Representatives continue to work with Sunnyside Valley Irrigation District (SVID) on burying the 

overflow irrigation canal running through the hospital property. The attached site plan (Attachment 

D) shows the current canal (green) and the proposed relocation site (orange). As we do more 

investigation, it may cost significantly more to move the canal (we are waiting on SVID for the cost of 

both options) and may involve more time and money to move the easements. We will discuss this 



with the Board as we receive more information, but right now, it appears the best option is to bury 

the canal in its current location. The final significant design issue we are dealing with is obtaining 

written approval from the Washington Department of Transportation (WADOT) regarding our traffic 

study mitigation solution (a three-way stop at Gap Road and the I 82 westbound exit). They have 

verbally approved the solution, but we must have it in writing for the USDA. 

 

 

B. Construction/Schedule/Budget 

          With the Board approval in September of the GC/CM contract and MACC with Bouten 

Construction, Bouten is in the process of communicating with each of the subcontractors that were 

the low bidders on our project. They are also hoping to conduct a construction team kick-off meeting 

with all contractors and owner before the end of October. The schedule for our project is in a state of 

flux as we continue to work with the DOH and the USDA. As we gather additional information in the 

coming week, we will share an updated schedule with the Board at the October Board Work Session. 

Based on what we know at this time, we anticipate breaking ground in late November or early 

December. There have been no changes to our budget which was approved in September, but I have 

included a recent article from Modern Healthcare about the increasing costs of hospital construction 

(Attachment E). It is interesting that they wrote about the Moses Lake Project, but also that most 

hospital construction is moving forward despite the high inflation. 

 

 

C. Financing 

      From a financing perspective we continue to receive good news as we have been officially 

approved for the additional $10 million loan and $1 million grant from the USDA (Attachment F). We 

also have confirmation from Western Alliance Bank that they have approved our interim construction 

loan for $80.5 million. This loan and interest rate will not be approved until we get closer to 

construction. Gary Hicks will attend the October Board Work Session to discuss the construction loan 

and his recommendation regarding whether we should enter into a fixed or variable rate 

construction loan. Gary will also discuss Board Resolution #1073 (Attachment G) which authorizes 

David or me to sign the final loan documents. 

 

 

 

 



2. 2023 Strategic Planning Update 

      We are off and running on our Strategic Planning Process for 2023. We have already conducted 10 

employee forums throughout the organization and have several more scheduled before the end of 

October. The input we receive through this process is invaluable and will lead our development of 

our 2023 plan. This process not only helps us plan for the future, but it also helps us address 

immediate concerns and answer a variety of questions. We plan to complete the process in October 

and develop a draft plan for review by the Board in November. A portion of our October Board Work 

Session will be used to review our Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior (Attachment H) 

and to identify actions the Board would like to see in our 2023 Strategic Plan (Attachment I). As you 

review the planning packet, please jot your thoughts down on the worksheets located at the back of 

the document and we will discuss them next week. The final 2023 PMH Strategic Plan will be 

presented to the Board for approval in December. 

       

 

Patient Loyalty 

1. Patient Satisfaction 

        For the first time since the beginning of 2022, our composite patient satisfactory score of 92.7% has 

slipped below our goal of 92.9% (2021 score) (Attachment J). While most of our metrics are very close 

to our goal, we have seen an overall decline in our scores the past several months. While this trend 

can be explained by our higher volumes and lack of patient rooms, we are working on ways to deal 

with these challenges and maintain high patient satisfaction. It will certainly be easier in our new 

facility, but we must address this trend now. I am confident that our dedicated staff will identify 

solutions for these challenges and change our satisfaction trajectory upward so that by year-end we 

will once again be meeting our satisfaction goal and exceeding the expectations of those we serve. 

 

 

2. Donation 

   A high school student, Raina Matthews, and her family delivered an iPad and stand for use by our 

patients on October 7th (Attachment K).  Raina was moved to action by the isolation of hospital 

patients during the Covid-19 pandemic and wanted to find a way to lessen the loneliness.  She and her 

brother started a Go-Fund-me account to raise money for ten iPads with rolling stands to distribute to 

Washington Hospitals.  The iPad will allow patients to connect with loved ones despite distance or risk 

of infection.   A large group of PMH employees gathered in the Vineyard Conference Room to receive 

this gift and thank this inspirational young woman and her family. 

 

 

 



Medical Staff Development 

1. Medical Staff Recruitment 

     Last month I mentioned the increasing demand for providers and the small supply, which was 

supported in a recent Trustee Insights article (Attachment L). Despite these challenges, our 

recruitment activity has increased, especially with providers reaching out to us as they pursue 

opportunities. We are currently recruiting for providers in radiology, orthopedic surgery, internal 

medicine, family practice, pediatrics, emergency medicine, and psychiatric nurse practitioners. We 

are currently in discussions with three radiologists, with two on-site visits already scheduled. We 

recently hosted Dr. Geoffrey Higgs-sports medicine orthopedic surgeon (Attachment M) and were 

very impressed with his experience and people skills. We are currently in negotiations with him and 

hope to have a signed contract by the end of October. We are also beginning a renewed recruitment 

effort in primary care (family practice, internal medicine and pediatrics) which we plan to carry into 

2023. The statewide shortage of primary care providers must be addressed, or our emergency 

departments will continue to be overwhelmed. We have several primary care candidates that we will 

be interviewing in the coming weeks. We also continue to recruit emergency medicine providers and 

are pleased to welcome Ty Nielson, PA-C; Steve McPhee PA-C; Dr. Rishor-Olney; Dr. Monick; and Dr. 

Wallace; to our Emergency Medicine Team. I am also pleased to welcome Karmina Bowen-ARNP who 

is joining Dr. Nylander in the PMH Dermatology Center. Please join me in welcoming these providers 

to Prosser Memorial Health! 

 

 

 

Employee Development 

1. Employee Engagement 

    As a result of the hard work of our Employee Engagement Team, we will once again celebrate the 

Annual Halloween Extravaganza on October 31ST. This fun event will include a department and 

individual costume contest; a pumpkin decorating contest and pumpkin give-away; a chili cookoff; a 

distribution of caramel apples; and lunch from Between the Buns, served by the Administrative Team 

(Attachment O). Good luck to everyone that dares to enter the contests! Planning is also underway 

for our Annual (now that COVID-19 is behind us!) Holiday Party which will be held December 10th at 

the HAPO Center in Pasco. Stay tuned for updates as sign-ups will begin soon. The October employee 

newsletter highlights some of the many activities and achievements at PMH in October (Attachment 

P). 

  

 

 



2. 2023 Benefits Update 

         The review of the 2023 Health & Welfare benefits renewal is complete. Our Broker, USI was 

successful in securing 2023 rates allowing Prosser Memorial Health to maintain the same healthcare 

rates as the current 2022 offerings. Leadership will now meet with the Insurance Advisory Committee 

(I.A.C.) made up of employees, directors, administrative staff and current insurance and retirement 

consultants (USI), to share information regarding the insurance plans for the upcoming year. It is 

noteworthy to mention that maintaining our current benefit rates that our employees pay is quite an 

unusual occurrence, especially with several very large medical claims in 2022 and overall inflation. This 

year’s open enrollment process will be performed within UKG (our payroll / time & attendance system) 

allowing our employees to use existing information and requiring less data entry. 

 

 

3. Leadership Development 

        The Prosser Memorial Health leadership team held this year’s second Leadership Development 
Institute (LDI) on September 30th. The focus of the event was reviewing our Mission, Vision, Values and 
PMH Standards of Behaviors in preparation for our Strategic Plan review. After a robust discussion 
amongst the team, we affirmed the core elements of our guiding principles’ while recognizing the need 
to include the word “Health”, replacing “Hospital” in the Vision statement reflecting the growing reach 
and positive impact on our surrounding communities. Our Hospital, Clinics, growing partnerships, and 
expanding services, comprise this network of services that continues to propel Prosser Memorial 
Health forward. 

 
The second half of the day of our LDI was spent in team competition testing our collective mettle 
throwing axes. It has been said, “A picture (or few) is worth a thousand words” … so: 

 

 
 

Everyone eagerly participated, all reported having a good time together, and the winning team: (Brian 
Fischer; Craig Marks; Tami Schaff; Lindsay Mckie; and Sasha Thomasson) walked away with bragging 
rights, a souvenir axe (plastic, of course) and a camouflage hat to commemorate the momentous 
occasion.  

  

 



 
   Financial Stewardship 

 
1. Financial Performance-September 

      
     September continued our year-to-date trend of strong volumes and financial performance again 
exceeding $20 million in gross charges (Attachment Q). Most of our departmental volumes were 
better than budget which resulted in our gross revenue being $3.975 million (22%) better than 
projected. Our deductions from revenue were 60% of the gross charges for the month, which was on 
budget, however, our year-to-date adjustments remain high at 63% of gross charges compared to a 
budget of 60% as a result, our net revenue (the cash we expect to collect for services provided in 
September) is $8.8 million or $1.6 million (22%) better than budget. Our operating expenses for the 
month were over budget by 14% due to recognizing the Board approved Retention Inflation Incentive 
on the income statement which will be paid out in October. This resulted in a still favorable operating 
income of $962,242 and an operating margin of 10.9% both significantly better than budget. As is 
typical of each quarter end, we reflect a gain or loss on our investments which continue to be less 
favorable and resulted in requiring us to reflect a loss of $273,188. Therefore, after adding in our 
non-operating income, our net income for the month of September was $742,013 compared to our 
budgeted net income of $538,286. All in all, we performed well in September despite the current 
investment market and ability to provide additional compensation to our hard-working employees.  
     Year-to-date we are experiencing a similar story with strong growth (13% over budget) in revenue 
and volumes exceeding budget. Total operating expenses are now almost flat to budget only 
exceeding budget by $30,963 year-to-date. With volumes equally strong and showing an increase of 
6% over the prior year, has resulted in an operating income of $9.1million and a net income of $8.6 
million both 120% and 94%, respectively, over budget. Our payor mix continues to be solid and 
reflects our commercial market is growing compared to last year. September reflects our strongest 
commercial percentage yet for the year at 34.8%. September showed a strong cash flow of $1.1 
million which is a reflection of our Business Office setting a record of $9.0 million in collections. Cash 
flow collections are $3.4 million year-to-date. This has resulted in the strengthening of our balance 
sheet to 163 days of cash compared to 148 days this time last year. We still are working towards our 
goal of lowering net days in accounts receivable as it remains at 55 days overall. Our team continues 
to work hard on this, but our strong financial performance makes it a tireless effort to keep up. In 
reflection, our success financially has been tremendous and without a doubt due to our dedicated 
staff and continued stellar performance serving our community and in all aspects of our Strategic 
Pillars. 
 
 
2. Financial Challenges 
 
          We continue to hear and read about the financial challenges hospitals are facing in Washington 

(Attachment R) and across the country (Attachment S). Significant lobbying is occurring in Olympia 
and Washington D.C. for financial relief for hospitals, but to date, no action has been taken. In my 
opinion, it is unlikely that there will be any relief in the near future as many, if not most hospitals 
and systems have very large reserves. If those reserves begin to be depleted, we may see action by 
Congress. Fortunately, we are performing well and are not dependent on any government 
assistance at this time. 

 



3.  PMH Clinics Quarterly Financial Performance 
 

     Through the third quarter of 2022 all clinics are continuing strong financial performance with a 
consolidated contribution margin of $3.6 million over budget (Attachment T). Our clinic overall 
gross patient charges are exceeding budget by $5.9 million and we continue to be lean on 
expenses at 3% below budget. Revenue for all locations show strong results year-to-date as they 
compare to budget, mainly due to increased clinical visits for reasons other than COVID 
vaccinations and testing. All current providers are exceeding volumes as compared to last year and 
we continue to see a high demand for appointments. We continue to recruit for vacancies in our 
clinics. The Grandview Clinic is showing strong performance, exceeding budget expectations by 1% 
and showing growth over last year by 38%. The Benton City Clinic still struggles with hitting the 
2022 budget without being fully staffed with providers, the current provider staff has grown 
volumes 16% in the current year over year-to-date last year. The Prosser Clinic is seeing a similar 
struggle in staffing providers; however, current providers are exceeding their budgeted volumes 
by 14% in comparison to year- to- date last year. In total, our clinics are 10% over last year's visit 
volumes. It is evident that our clinics continue to provide exceptional care to our growing 
community, and we continue to expand and recruit to meet and support the communities 
constantly growing health care needs to meet this demand. The PMH clinic network currently 
represents $79.3 million of gross revenue to Prosser Memorial Health. 

 
 
 
 
4. PMH Investment Performance 

 
     As of September 30, 2022, the District has $16,494,969 in its investment portfolio which is 
managed by Time Value Investments. Investment earnings in 2022 have continued to be 
disappointing and have had to recognize another loss for third quarter as interest rates continue 
at historic lows. Rates have jumped up a bit post-September and we’re now at the highest level 
we've seen since about mid-2007. Short-term investment rates are about 4.00-4.25% with 4.50% 
and higher in the 1–3-year range. From there, rates start to drop a bit, which reflects the 
uncertainty in the market about whether we’ll have a recession (and therefore lower rates) 
sometime in the next year or two. Currently, we are sustaining all transferred funded depreciation 
incurred monthly under Board Designated Funds within the Funded Depreciation cash account 
and are opting not to roll anything into investments at this time. Upcoming, we have one bond 
maturing in October which will provide some offset to our losses. While we do have to continue to 
reflect our current market position quarterly, these are not impacting actual cash flow and the 
longer we hold on to our investments, the better our return will be. Aaron Bonck from Time Value 
Investments will present our current performance to the Board at the October Finance Committee 
(Attachment U). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
5. 2023 Budget Update 

 
    As we begin to collect information as part of our Strategic Planning Process, we have also begun to 
develop our operating and capital budgets for 2023. Our department leaders are currently projecting 
their volumes and expenses for next year, which has brought forward new challenges with high 
utilization, market instability, and inflation. By the end of October/early November, we will 
consolidate all department data and anticipate the total margin will be strong to meet or exceed our 
strategic goal of 6.0%. We will continue to work in correlation with our department leaders to 
identify additional opportunities for improvement (revenue growth and expense reduction), as 
needed, to meet our goals. In addition to working on our operating budget, we are also collecting 
capital acquisition requests from our Medical Staff and all PMH departments, and our clinics while 
being extremely cognizant of need versus want as we attempt to conserve our cash. A preliminary 
budget will be presented to the Finance Committee and the Board in November and the final 2023 
operating and capital budgets will be presented to the Board for approval in December. 
 
 
 
 
6. PMH Foundation Update 
 

         It is with great appreciation and gratitude; I am happy to announce that Bouten Construction 
has pledged $150,000 to the new hospital project; and Garrett Electric and Apollo Mechanical have 
pledged $75,000 each. The foundation is set to launch the public phase of the capital campaign for 
the new hospital project in November when we break ground at the new location. 

 
 
 
 
7. Modular Home Replacement 
   
       On October 11, 2021, the modular home that Prosser Memorial Health owned, and was using 
for storage, caught fire and suffered a total loss of property and possessions.  Travelers Insurance 
provided full replacement coverage per the PMH property insurance coverage and has issued 
reimbursement of $105,021 towards the value of this property less its calculated depreciated value 
and deductible of $10,000.  The destroyed home was abated for asbestos and disposed of per state 
regulations.  To place a new home on the site will require a new concrete slab that incorporates 
hooking up utilities (water, sewer, electricity.)  The city code requires a paved driveway and a 
garage for a new or replacement home and insurance will not pay for this required upgrade.   
PMH identified three options that varied from $179,849 plus options to $222,829 plus options and 

is recommending a replacement home sold by Clayton Homes of Union Gap that is comparable in 

size and quality to the previous home (Attachment V).  It is a 3-bedroom, 2-bath, 1,512 sq ft home 

and will have a paved/asphalt driveway and a 2-car garage for approximately $365,506 once its 

completed.  Its market value should be equal to or greater than this cost plus the value of the land 

upon which it resides. This home can then be utilized by PMH for temporary housing for travelers, 

locums, or new employees moving to Prosser, WA as its currently zoned as residential.  At the 



October Board Meeting, the Board will be asked to approve to build a new garage and driveway for 

approximately $79,654 for the aforementioned property and to coordinate with the Property 

Insurance Carrier to purchase and install the replacement modular home as described. 

 
 
 

Quality 
 
1. Community Health Needs Assessment 
       

     The development of a Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) is a governmental regulation 

(section 501(r)(3)(A)) as a not-for-profit organization.  The CHNA helps determine which critical 

health needs the community will focus on over the next three to five years. It is a systematic and 

shared process for identifying and analyzing community needs and assets throughout Benton and 

Franklin Counties.  A full copy of the 2022 CHNA is in the October Board packet. 

  

     The CHNA steering committee began meeting weekly in January of 2022. The committee includes 

representatives of Benton-Franklin Health District (BFHD), Benton-Franklin Community Health 

Alliance (BFCHA), Kadlec Regional Medical Center (Kadlec), and Prosser Memorial Health 

(PMH).  Quantitative and qualitative data were used to identify community needs through a mixed-

methods approach.  Qualitative data includes twenty-one interviews with working partners and 

community collaborators (partners), ten listening sessions, two behavioral health forums, two 

housing and homelessness forums, and two general forums.  CHNA steering committee members 

met weekly in July and August 2022 to apply the prioritization criteria to the identified needs.  The 

list below summarizes the significant health needs identified through the 2022 Community Health 

Needs Assessment process in no particular order (Attachment W): 

  

• Behavioral Health - The assessment identified significant needs for behavioral health response 
and prevention. Behavioral health, which encompasses mental health and substance 
use/misuse, was identified as a need in all areas of this CHNA.  

• Housing and Homelessness - The assessment identified a low supply of affordable housing, low 
supply of multi-family units, low vacancy rates for rentals, and increased rental costs. 

• Access to Health – The assessment identified a need for access to not only healthcare, but also 
access to community supports that enable health.  Access to Health will include a focus on 
addressing barriers to medical care, including healthcare provider to patient ratios and 
linguistically appropriate, culturally responsive, and accessible care. 

• Community Partnership Development – The assessment identified that strengthening 
partnerships and coordinating efforts has the potential to improve outcomes through shared 
goals and resources. This priority area will impact the other three priority areas by improving 
communications, clarifying coalition functions, and expanding the work of community health 
improvement to non-traditional partnerships 
  



Benton-Franklin Health District, Benton-Franklin Community Health Alliance, Kadlec Regional 

Medical Center, and Prosser Memorial Health, in collaboration with community partners will 

develop a three-year Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) to respond to these prioritized 

needs. The Board will be asked to approve this Plan at their October meeting. 

 
 

2.  Board Education 
 

     I'm pleased to report that the American Hospital Association is once again hosting its Annual 
Rural Health Care Leadership Conference in 2023 (Attachment X). This year however, the 
conference will be held in San Antonio from February 19-22. The conference will be held at the JW 
Marriott and will feature noted speakers in health care, politics, management, etc. This is an 
excellent conference and an excellent way for Board members to interact with their peers regarding 
the challenges rural hospitals are facing. If you are interested in attending, please contact my office 
at your earliest convenience so that we can make a reservation for you. 

 
 
3.  Flu Vaccines 
          

           It is that time of year again!  Flu shot season!  We have scheduled three separate Employee Flu 

Vaccine Clinics: October 6th, October 14th and October 27th from 7-10 am in the Vineyard Conference 

room (Attachment Y).  Along with the flu shots, staff can do their annual N95 mask fitting and PAPR 

training.  Employees that are unable to get their flu shot between 7-10 am on those three dates, can 

request their shot from the House Supervisor who has access to the vaccine at any time of the day or 

night.  For those employees/volunteers who are 65 years and older, they can receive the Fluzone 

High-Dose vaccine because they are at higher risk of developing serious flu complications. Board 

members may receive a flu vaccine at the October Board Work Session (COVID-19 boosters are also 

available). Employee flu shots have been delivered to our primary care clinics where the clinical staff 

are able to administer to other staff members as needed.  The ENT Clinic and the Specialty Clinic 

employees can receive their flu shots at the hospital. The Therapy Clinic already received their 

vaccine from our Employee Health staff last week.  So far, we have approximately 113 employees 

that have received their flu vaccine with 10 declinations.  Per our Employee Influenza Vaccination 

policy, the due date for vaccination is no later than October 31st.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4. October Board Meeting 

     The October Board Work Session will be used to give the Board updates and discuss several items 

including: a) a discussion of our replacement facility project by our project team; b) a discussion of a 

modular home replacement and c) a 2023 Strategic Planning discussion including a review of our 

Mission, Vision, Values and Standards of Behavior. The October Board Meeting will be routine with 

Medical Staff privileging, financial performance review and possible approval of financing for the 

replacement facility project (Board Resolution #1073), Community Health Needs Assessment and a 

Modular Home Replacement at a cost not to exceed $79,654. As a reminder the November Board 

Work Session and meeting will be held on November 15th and 17th and the December Board Work 

Session and meeting will be held on December 13TH and 15TH. These changes were all made to avoid 

conflicts with the upcoming holiday season. 

 

           

          

 

If you have any questions regarding this report, or other hospital activities, please contact me at 

(269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the hospital.                                                                              



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment A

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment B







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment C





Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment D



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment E













Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment F



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment G





































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment H



































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment I











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment J



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment K



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment L









Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment M











Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment O



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment P





































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Q



























Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment R















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment S





























































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment T



















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment U



Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment V

















Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment W























































































































































































































Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment X







Rosemary Mendoza
Typewriter
Attachment Y


	Board Packet Cover sheet
	10.25.22 Work Session Agenda
	10.27.22 Board  Meeting Agenda
	BOC Work Plan FY2022
	Copy of _2022 PATIENT CARE SCORECARD
	Copy of _2022 Strategic Plan Scorecard
	09.27.2022 Board Work Session Minutes
	09.29.22  Board Minutes
	10.19.22 JCC Minutes
	10-24-22 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA
	09.26.22 Finance Committee Minutes updated
	October 2022 CEO Memo updated
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E
	Attachment F
	Attachment G
	Attachment H
	Attachment I
	Attachment J
	Attachment K
	Attachment L
	Attachment M
	Attachment O
	Attachment P
	Attachment Q
	Attachment R
	Attachment S
	Attachment T
	Attachment U
	Attachment V
	Attachment W
	Attachment X
	Attachment Y



